1952

Utah Power & Light Company and Telluride Power Company v. Public Service Commission of Utah and Nephi City : Brief of Petitioner

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Although the parties differ as to the legal conclusions to be drawn from the facts, the facts themselves are undisputed and indisputable.

Nephi City, since 1903, has owned and operated hydroelectric generating plants and a distribution system by which it distributes electric energy to itself and generally to its inhabitants (R. 43). These plants have generating capacity during low water season of approximately 125 KW and maximum capacity during high water season of 250 KW (R. 43). It is not possible for Nephi City to increase the capacity of its hydroelectric plants (R. 43). The peak load requirement of the system is now approximately 500 KW (R. 43). In order to provide this amount of electric energy, Nephi must purchase energy or construct new Diesel electric or steam electric generating plant (R. 43). For the past several years this problem has been solved by purchasing energy from Telluride Power Company, pursuant to its regular schedule of rates and the approval of the Public Service Commission.

No complaint is made by Nephi or any of its customers of the service or rates of Telluride (R. 1-3). Telluride has adequate facilities to meet all requirements of Nephi (R. 45).

Telluride Power Company for many years has been a public utility, supplying electric energy by means of generating plants and transmission and distribution lines to the inhabitants of portions of Sanpete, Sevier, Piute, Garfield, Juab, Millard and Beaver Counties. The area served is 15,000 to 20,000 square miles, about 200 miles long and 100 miles wide (R. 186). Three of its transmission lines cross mountains at elevations above 10,500 feet (R. 186). Total population in the area served by Telluride is only about 45,000. Population in areas served by Utah Power is over 10 times that amount.

Telluride purchases substantial quantities of electric energy from Utah Power & Light Company (R. 198) and such energy is delivered through a switchrack of Utah Power & Light Company located on the property of Thermoid Rubber Company near Nephi. Telluride is also interconnected with and takes energy from and distributes energy to Manti City, Ephraim City, Mount Pleasant, Beaver City, Garkane Power Association, Incorporated, Big Springs Power Company and Southern Utah Power Company (R. 188).

By means of its own generating capacity and purchase of energy from the sources mentioned above, Telluride has adequate power and other facilities to meet all the requirements of Nephi City for electric energy (R. 45). Telluride for many years has served exclusively the area south from

Mona (which is 7 miles north of Nephi) including all the area around Nephi City. Utah Power & Light Company has never served the area south of Mona, nor has it manifested any desire to do so (R. 101). Nor has it facilities to do so (R. 110-113). It has a certificate of convenience and necessity to serve the area now being served by it which does not include territory south of Mona (R. 110-113). Utah Power has no facilities south of Mona (R. 109, 110-113). Utah Power has never served south of Mona (R. 119). It has appealed from the order of the Commission (R. 62).

Telluride has a certificate of convenience and necessity to serve the area south of Mona (R. 45).

Neither one has a certificate to serve any of the area served by the other. Utah Power & Light Company serves the Thermoid plant, 2000 feet north of Nephi, (R. 218) pursuant to special permission by the Public Service Commission. All parties, including Telluride, agreed. The Public Service Commission in finally permitting the extension in 1947, treated it as an exception and stated that the authority granted "shall not be construed to authorize Utah Power & Light Company to serve any other customer in the territory now being served by Telluride Power Company" (R. 305, 306, Exhibit 19). The two lines from Mona to Thermoid switchrack are owned by Telluride (R. 116, Exhibit 1). They are leased to Utah Power (R. 109, 110). They are for the exclusive use of Thermoid and Telluride (R. 116). For Utah Power to serve Nephi as ordered by P. S. C. there would have to be constructed a new transmission line from

Mona to Nephi and new switching facilities at Mona where connection would be made with Utah Power facilities (R. 110-113). Such new facilities would cost about \$100,000.

Utah Power & Light Company, with some relatively minor municipal exceptions, serves power to the entire area extending from Mona along the western slope of the Wasatch mountains to the Utah-Idaho boundary line, including Salt Lake, Ogden and Provo. It has nothing to do with any lines south of Mona (R. 114). From an electric power standpoint, it is by far the best area in the State of Utah. Telluride, on the other hand, operates in comparatively barren areas where power users are relatively small in numbers but the distances required for transmission lines are very great.

Due to these natural differences, the rates charged by the schedules of the Utah Power & Light Company are substantially less than the rates of the Telluride Power Company. The rates of both companies have been approved by the Public Service Commission. As stated, no complaint is made in this case by Nephi City or any of its customers as to rates charged by Telluride.

The sole objective of Nephi City is to secure from Utah Power & Light Company power at its rate which is lower than the Telluride rate, but this desire for economy is not advanced as a reason by P. S. C. for its order.

The order of the Public Service Commission complained of here holds that Nephi City has this right without P. S. C. order. The order so provides although there are no existing facilities for delivering the electric energy from Mona,

which is the point on the Utah Power & Light Company system nearest to Nephi. The existing two lines serving Thermoid and Telluride are not part of the interconnecting Utah Power & Light System (R. 107). It will be necessary both to construct a new transmission line 7 miles in length and to construct some new connecting facility (R. 110-113).

Utah Power & Light Company has never held itself out or dedicated its property to furnishing electric energy to any area south of Mona (R. 117). Nevertheless, the order of the Commission is that Utah Power & Light Company "shall offer to furnish and deliver to Nephi City such electric energy as Nephi City may need—". Thus the Commission's own order recognizes that it is requiring the Power Company to extend its profession of public service.

The loss of revenue to Telluride from this order in 1949 would have been \$21,171.07 (R. 158).

STATEMENT OF ERRORS UPON WHICH PETITIONER WILL RELY TO SET ASIDE THE ORDER OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION.

I.

THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION VIOLATED THE LAW IN FAILING TO PROTECT TELLURIDE POWER COMPANY FROM COMPETITION IN AN AREA TO WHICH IT HAD DEDICATED ITS PROPERTY FOR RENDITION OF SERVICE AND IN WHICH PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY DID NOT REQUIRE ADDITIONAL SERVICE.

II.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION VIOLATED THE LAW IN ORDERING THE INVASION OF TELLURIDE TERRITORY WITH CONSEQUENT SERIOUS DAMAGE WITHOUT ANY EVIDENCE AND WITHOUT MAKING ANY FINDING THAT THE PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY REQUIRES ANY SUCH, OR ANY OTHER REASON THEREFOR, BUT ON THE CONTRARY WITH A FINDING THAT EXISTING FACILITIES ARE IN ALL PARTICULARS ADEQUATE.

III.

THE ORDER SHOULD BE SET ASIDE BECAUSE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION PROCEEDED THROUGHOUT UPON AN ERRONEOUS CONCEPTION OF THE LAW, THAT NEPHI HAD AN ABSOLUTE RIGHT TO BUY POWER FROM UTAH POWER.

IV.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION VIOLATED THE FEDERAL AND UTAH CONSTITUTIONS IN ORDERING UTAH POWER & LIGHT COMPANY TO RENDER SERVICE IN AN AREA TO WHICH IT HAS NOT DEDICATED ITS PROPERTY.

I

THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION VIOLATED THE LAW IN FAILING TO PROTECT TELLURIDE POWER COMPANY FROM COMPETITION IN AN AREA TO WHICH IT HAD DEDICATED ITS PROPERTY FOR RENDITION OF SERVICE AND IN WHICH PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY DID NOT REQUIRE ADDITIONAL SERVICE.

P. S. C. has entirely disregarded this protective principle and has thus acted unlawfully, arbitrarily, capriciously and failed to exercise its authority according to law. Its order should be annulled.

Mulcahy v. P. S. C., 101 Utah 245, 117 Pac. (2) 298;

Union Pacific R. Co. v. P. S. C., 102 Utah 465, 132 Pac. (2d) 128.

This is a matter of great importance to Telluride. Not only would it reduce its income for 1949 to the extent of \$21,171.07 but it also serves as a precedent for other municipal utilities to follow as a result of which the Telluride system could be very seriously damaged. As revenues are lost, costs would increase and rates would have to follow. The action of P. S. C. is both short sighted and unlawful.

In an Indiana case, *The Union Telephone Company v. Tipton Telephone Company*, P. U. R. 1933 c. 285, a large company sought to serve patrons within a territory served by a smaller company. They were not permitted to do so. The Public Service Commission granted a rate increase to the Union Telephone Company, which adjoined territory served by the Tipton Telephone Company. Following this

rate increase several customers of the Union Telephone Company requested the Commission for permission to remove their telephones and seek service from the Tipton Telephone Company, which served the town of Tipton where most of their business and social life was carried on. The Public Service Commission denied the application of the complaining customers but the people made their own connection with the Tipton Company. The Union Telephone Company petitioned the Service Commission to stop service by the Tipton Company.

On pages 291 and 293 the Commission said:

“A portion of the prayer of petitioner in this cause is that certain subscribers located in the controverted territory be required to take service, if any, from the Ekin exchange of the Union Telephone Company. The Commission is of the opinion that it does not have the power to direct individuals to take service at all, or to take service from any particular company, but that it does have power to protect a public utility, which has dedicated its property to the service of a particular territory and which is ready and willing to serve all within that territory on the same terms, from invasion of its territory by another utility rendering a like service.

* * * * *

“The Commission is of the opinion that the territorial limits of telephone companies must not be encroached upon by adjoining telephone companies; that *the Commission has the power and it is its duty to preserve these rights and prevent such encroachment; that the interests of all the parties concerned are better served by enforcing the territorial rights of each.*

“The Commission is of the opinion that it would not be in the interest of either of these companies to

allow the patrons, one by one, to be taken away from the company entitled to the territory where such patrons reside. By doing so it would necessarily cripple the company which loses such patrons and cause an increase of rates to those who remain with such company. It would mean that the larger company would sooner or later bankrupt the smaller one; it would seem that if the Commission permits the Tipton Telephone Company to enter the territory of the Union Telephone Company at Ekin, that other adjoining companies would have to be extended the same privilege if demanded; thus the Ekin exchange of the Union Telephone Company could be made to lose all its territory and patrons; and in this way would be forced to abandon and lose its property."

This same principle and protection were extended by P. U. C. of Utah to an electric utility in *In re Bayles, et al.*, P. U. R. 1926 A 731. Bayles and eighteen other individuals petitioned the Public Utilities Commission of Utah for an order permitting the construction of an electric power line from their various farms in Parowan Valley to the northwest corner of Parowan City, so that they could buy power from Parowan City at 50% less than from Dixie Power Company, which served that area. The Commission denied their petition.

In discussing the disastrous effect on the entire system of the Dixie Power Company of such an order, the Commission said:

"While the lower rate offered by Parowan to Bayles and others, would have inured to its advantage for the present, the Commission is compelled to take into consideration the effect that granting this petition would have upon the users of power and light in the balance of the territory occupied by the Dixie Power Company.

"The loss of the income now derived by the power company in the vicinity of Parowan, together with the capital loss entailed by the enforced removal of the existing transmission lines, would ultimately have to be borne by the users in St. George, Cedar City, Hurricane, Washington, Summit, and various other communities and industries now served by it."

In still another case the Public Utilities Commission of Utah has announced the fundamental principle that utilities must be protected in their designated fields of service. *In re Streeper*, P. U. R. 1924 B, 392, applicant petitioned for a certificate of convenience and necessity to operate a truck line between Salt Lake and Ogden. Protestants were the established carriers. The Commission denied the application. On page 398, the Commission said:

*"Aside from the express limitations of the statute forbidding the issuance of certificates to applicants, unless 'the present or future public convenience and necessity require,' we are forced to the conclusion that it is for the best interests of the general public that public service agencies operating in a given field should be stabilized rather than be subjected to the ruinous hazard of competition. This principle seems to be in accord pretty generally, if not universally, with the conclusions arrived at by the Commissions of other states having jurisdiction over public utilities * * *."*

On pages 298 to 299, the Commission quoted with approval the following statement of the law from the Supreme Court of Illinois:

"It is not the policy of the Public Utilities Act to promote competition between common carriers as a means of providing service to the public. The policy established by that act is, that through regulation of an established carrier occupying a given field and

protecting it from competition it may be able to serve the public more efficiently and at a more reasonable rate than would be the case if other competing lines were authorized to serve the public in the same territory * * * Where one company can serve the public conveniently and efficiently it has been found from experience that to authorize a competing company to serve the same territory ultimately results in requiring the public to pay more for transportation, in order that both companies may receive a fair return on the money invested and cost of operation * * * Whether the public convenience and necessity require the establishment of a new transportation facility is not determined by the number of individuals who may ask for it. The public must be concerned as distinguished from any number of individuals."

The authority of the *Bayles* case remains unimpaired, yet the P. S. C. in the case at bar didn't even discuss it.

In a Wisconsin case, *Re Belmont and Pleasant View Telephone Company*, P. U. R. 1918 A, 491, the Belmont Telephone Company asked permission to extend telephone lines to some customers then served by LaFayette Telephone Company, which protested because the proposed extension would duplicate their existing lines. LaFayette rates were lower and Belmont subscribers desired the Belmont Company to extend its service to them. The Public Service Commission denied their applications and said that the mere fact that the Belmont Company service is cheaper cannot justify a duplication of equipment. On page 492 the Commission said:

"The duplication of equipment which the proposed extension would bring about, together with the probable loss of five or more subscribers by the La-

Fayette company, calls for a strong showing of public convenience and necessity in order to justify the competitive condition. The fact that the proposed service would be somewhat less expensive does not, of course, affect the matter at all, so far as the necessity for a competing line is concerned.

* * *

In a New Jersey case decided in 1949, *Borough of Butler v. New Jersey Power and Light Company*, 78 P. U. R., N. S., 448, Butler for many years operated its own municipal electric system and since 1926 served the adjoining town of Kinnelon. Under New Jersey law, municipal systems are public utilities subject to Commission regulation. The New Jersey Power and Light Company began serving customers in Smoke Rise, which was a new housing development within the limits of the town of Kinnelon. The users at Smoke Rise preferred service from the New Jersey Power. Butler objected to this service and petitioned the Commission for an order to restrain New Jersey Power Company from serving Smoke Rise, alleging that its territory was being invaded.

The Commission granted Butler's petition on the grounds that Smoke Rise was within the area served by Butler. The Commission stated that there is no allegation that the rates charged by the Borough of Butler are unreasonable or excessive and that even if such an accusation had been made, the proper remedy would be by a complaint before the Commission on the question of rate. The Commission on page 460 said:

"In view of these considerations, the matter of comparative rates will not be considered as determinative of the basic issue in this case * * *."

In an Oklahoma case decided in 1947, *Nicoma Park Telephone Company v. State*, 69 P. U. R., N. S. 521, 180 P. (2d) 626, Nicoma Company, a small telephone company, and the Bell Telephone Company owned adjoining systems, the small exchange serving Nicoma Park, a suburb of Oklahoma City and the large exchange serving Oklahoma City. The Public Service Commission ordered boundaries of service areas to be changed so that the large Bell Telephone Company could take over some of the service theretofore performed by the Nicoma Company. This would deprive Nicoma of approximately 10% of its revenue. The Supreme Court of Oklahoma reversed the order of the Commission. The court said that the effect of allowing Bell to enter the Nicoma territory would be to destroy the value of Nicoma's franchise and much of the value of its equipment.

On page 630 the court said:

“* * * The action appears to be one of attempting to satisfy the residents of the area wanting to communicate with Oklahoma City without paying a toll service charge, even though it be at a financial loss to both companies which, eventually, would have to be passed on to their other subscribers in the form of increased exchange rates.”

If the order by the Public Service Commission should be affirmed, Telluride will lose a revenue from Nephi City, and certain equipment and facilities dedicated to the service of Nephi as a part of the Telluride system would be rendered useless and the territory in which Telluride, pursuant to law and the orders of the Public Service Commission, has been furnishing electrical service as a public utility to all persons desirous thereof, including Nephi City, will be impaired.

Utah Power & Light Company and Telluride Power Company, Plaintiffs, vs. The Public Service Commission of Utah and Nephi City, Defendants. Case No. 7803.

Additional authorities supporting Point I for benefit of Plaintiffs.

For insertion on page 14 of Plaintiff's brief after line 23.

United Fuel Gas Company v. Public Service Commission, 103 W. Va. 306, 138 S. E. 388. Huntington, West Virginia, was being served by Huntington Development and Gas Company. Huntington Brick and Tile Company was served by the Huntington Development and Gas Company. No complaint was made of the service but it desired to be served by the United Fuel Gas Company because the rates of the latter were lower. On page 390 the court said:

“* * * That petitioner made complaint, not because of any failure of service by the intervening company, but for the sole purpose of getting the service at a lower rate, to which the United Fuel Gas Company had been limited by the commission.
* * * If, as is admitted, the only purpose of the complainant was to get cheaper gas, why was the application not made to the commission to compel the intervenor to reduce its rates? * * *”

On page 391 the court said:

“The disposition of patrons of public utilities to reach out for duplicate service by others is opposed to the general principles controlling such public service. With reference to this subject, an able writer says:

“The commissions are constantly denying applications for extensions into occupied territory where the established company is furnishing adequate service at reasonable rates. It has even been held that a commission cannot establish general rules and regulations governing

the extension of water mains in new localities, since the necessity of the extension must be determined from the facts of each case.' 1 Spurr's Guiding Principles of Public Service Regulation, p. 118."

Marr v. City of Glendale, 181 P. 671, 40 Cal. App. 748. Plaintiff sought to have Glendale required to serve her with water which would necessitate construction of additional facilities. A private water company with adequate water and facilities was at her door. The court held that the Commission properly refused the order. On page 673 the court said:

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