1952

# Utah Power & Light Company and Telluride Power Company v. Public Service Commission of Utah and Nephi City : Brief of Defendant

Utah Supreme Court

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

## ARGUMENT

POINT I. NEPHI, IN THE EXERCISE OF ITS POWER TO OPERATE AND MAINTAIN ITS OWN POWER SYSTEM, IS NOT SUBJECT TO THE CONTROL OR SUPERVISION OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION.

Section 29, Article VI of the Constitution of the State of Utah provides as follows:

“The Legislature shall not delegate to any special commission, private corporation or association, any power to make, supervise or interfere with any municipal improvement, money, property or effects, whether held in trust or otherwise, to levy taxes, to select a capitol site, or to perform any municipal functions.”

The foregoing constitutional provision has been construed by the Supreme Court of Utah in the case of *Logan City v. Public Utilities Commission*, 72 Utah 536, 251 Pac. 961. In that case an attempt was made by the Public Utilities Commission of Utah to fix the rates charged by the City of Logan to its inhabitants for electric power, provided by their municipally owned plant. The Supreme Court of Utah held that a municipality has the right to operate its power facilities for the use and benefit of its inhabitants without interference or supervision by the Public Utilities Commission. The court said at page 565 of the Utah Reports:

“We think it clear that the undoubted purpose of the constitutional provision is to hold inviolate the right of local self-government of cities and towns with respect to municipal improvements, money, property, effects, the levying of taxes, and the performance of municipal functions . . .

“There is still a further constitutional provision (Sec. 4, Art. 14) of some relevancy to the matter in hand, which places a limit of indebtedness on cities and counties not exceeding 4 per centum of the value of the taxable property therein, with a proviso, however, that any city or town may incur a larger indebtedness, not exceeding 4 per centum additional, ‘for supplying such city or town with water, artificial lights or sewers, when the works

for supplying such water, lights and sewers *shall be owned and controlled by the municipality.*' (Italics added) Such, we think, contemplates that such utilities as there enumerated shall not only be owned, but also controlled, by the municipality, and as indicative of a policy in harmony with the other constitutional provisions referred to, to hold inviolate the right and power of a municipality to do so, and that to delegate a power to a commission or other agency to supervise, regulate and control the business of such a municipally owned utility, disapprove contracts, purchases, and expenditures of the municipality with respect thereto, and substitute others in lieu thereof, fix rate and charges under which the utility may be operated; and to permit the commission to do what it here in effect did, determine the means or source by or from which the operating expenses and bonded indebtedness of the plant or works must be met, constitute unauthorized interference with the control of the utility by the municipality. "We are thus of the opinion that the order made by the commission, insofar as it affects Logan City, is beyond the power and jurisdiction of the commission, and therefore is annulled and vacated."

The Logan City case was reaffirmed by the Utah Supreme Court in the case of *Barnes v. Lehi City*, 74 Utah 321, 279 Pac. 878, and reaffirmed and distinguished in the more recent case of *Provo City v. Department of Business Regulation*, 218 P. (2d) 675, page 678.

In view of the foregoing constitutional provision and of the cases construing it, it is clear that the P.S.C. has no jurisdiction to regulate a municipally-owned power plant. To do what petitioners now contend (make

Nephi buy from Telluride by prohibiting any other company from selling to Nephi) would by indirection do that which the constitution would not permit the Commission to do directly.

POINT II. NEPHI IS NOT THE "TERRITORY" OF  
TELLURIDE AND THE COMMISSION HAS NO  
JURISDICTION TO COMPEL NEPHI TO PUR-  
CHASE POWER FROM TELLURIDE.

It is asserted by Telluride that Utah Power has been ordered to invade Telluride's "territory". It is also asserted that Utah Power could only sell to Nephi if the public convenience and necessity required it. Since Telluride can buy all the power Nephi needs from Utah Power, it can sell Nephi all the power Nephi needs. Thus it is argued the P.S.C. should compel Nephi to let Telluride broker the power to Nephi forever; its ten-year contract to sell power to Nephi makes Nephi Telluride's exclusive territory and supersedes all the constitutional provisions which give to Nephi "self-rule" in this field.

The cases simply do not support any such proposition. Were we dealing with an unincorporated area under the direct control of the P.S.C. (as in cases cited by Telluride) there would be an exclusive franchise area which could not be invaded by a second utility unless the first utility could not render adequate service. Here, however, Nephi is not the territory of Telluride. There is no way Telluride could force its way into Nephi. The P.S.C. could not grant either Telluride or Utah Power

the right to distribute power in Nephi. Nor could the P.S.C. regulate Nephi. Nephi could build its own generating plants and not buy power from either. It could buy power from the Town of Levan or the city of Provo and the P.S.C. would have absolutely no jurisdiction over the contract between the cities. Its only concern here is to see that other customers of Utah Power are not given *inadequate service* by reason of sales to Nephi. The P.S.C. could not order Utah Power to sell to Nephi if Utah Power did not have the facilities, or could only sell to Nephi by depriving its other customers of adequate service. Here, the power going to Nephi will come from Utah Power, in any event. Telluride has not constructed substantial new generating facilities for over thirty years. (R. 176.) It could only supply Nephi by continuing to purchase from Utah Power. Thus, it will not interfere with Utah Power's service to other customers to continue selling power to Nephi. In fact, Mr. Irvine testified that Utah Power has adequate facilities to furnish all the power Nephi needs or wants. (R. 107.)

- (a) THE CASES HOLD THAT NEPHI NEED NOT BUY POWER FROM THE NEAREST UTILITY, NOR PERPETUATE THE EXISTING CONTRACT.

Fortunately, we are not here "breaking new ground". This problem has been before several commissions and the results have been uniform in upholding our position.

In a very recent case, *In re Union Electric Company of Missouri*, 1951 P. U. R. (N.S.) 428, this identical prob-

lem was presented to the Missouri Commission. There the city of Rolla had for a number of years been purchasing power from Sho-Me Power Company. Its contract had been terminated and was no longer in effect. It desired to purchase power from Union Electric Company. Sho-Me protested, saying that its service to Rolla was adequate, and that the loss of revenues would seriously injure Sho-Me. Missouri, like Utah, permits cities to engage in supplying electricity to their inhabitants free from regulation by the State Commission. Practically every contention made by Telluride here was made by Sho-Me in the Missouri case. It had for a number of years had a contract just as Telluride has had a contract here. The contract had ended as Telluride's has ended. Its service was adequate, as Telluride contends that its is. The loss of revenues was assured and the consequences were equally as serious as are presented here. The Missouri Commission held exactly as our Utah Commission has held, and in so holding said:

“The Supreme Court in *Columbia v. State Public Service Commission*, 1931, 329 Mo. 38, 43 S.W. (2d) 813, has held that this Commission does not have authority under the law to regulate municipally owned electric light plants. Since the law allows municipalities to own and operate electric plants and systems for the purpose of serving its inhabitants, and as such are not subject to regulation by this commission, to refuse to permit a utility under our jurisdiction, able and willing to contract with the municipality to furnish service thereto on the sole ground that it would injure or harm another utility furnishing service to said municipality, would in effect be doing indirectly

what the law will not permit us to do directly—that is, exercising jurisdiction over the territory within the exclusive control of the municipality. In order for one utility to invade the territory of another, it would be necessary for said utility to enter and serve territory belonging to the other. The City of Rolla and the inhabitants thereof are as far removed from the territory of Sho-Me as though lying in another state. *MacKay Light & Power Company v. Ashton & St. Anthony Power Company (Idaho) P.U.R. 1920B, 4.*

“The Commission has no authority to pass on the decision of the city of Rolla to cease purchasing its energy requirements from Sho-Me.

“However, in this case, it can not be said that the city of Rolla is within the allotted service area of either Sho-Me or the applicant. By virtue of other provisions of our statutes, the city, by its authorized action, has placed itself beyond the service area of any utility, since it has elected to own and operate its own electric system for the service of the public within its corporate limits.”

The identical problem was also presented to the Idaho commission in the case of *MacKay Light & Power Company v. Ashton & St. Anthony Power Company*, P.U.R. 1920 B, page 4.

In that case the complainant, MacKay Light & Power Company, had been granted a certificate of public convenience and necessity authorizing it to build a transmission line from its plant near MacKay, Idaho, to the Village of Arco, and to furnish electrical energy to said village and territory adjacent to its transmission line. However, the Village of Arco desired to purchase power

from the Ashton & St. Anthony Power Company. That company had adequate power to serve the Village of Arco without in any way interfering with its ability to serve its present and prospective customers. The Village of Arco owned and maintained a small power plant operated by a gas engine and such plant was inadequate and unsatisfactory to meet the needs of the village; and the people of the village had voted municipal bonds for the purpose of constructing an electric transmission line from a connection with the village system across MacKay Light & Power Company's territory to the system of St. Anthony.

In upholding the right of the village of Arco to construct a transmission line through the territory of the MacKay Light & Power Company, and to purchase its electric energy from the latter company, the Public Service Commission of Idaho stated:

“Complainant insists that defendant, by extending its lines to meet or connect with the transmission line of the village of Arco, even though such extension is entirely within territory allotted to defendant by the Commission, is invading or attempting to invade the territory covered by the certificate of complainant, thus doing or attempting to do, indirectly what it cannot lawfully do directly; that since there is no demand for electric energy for use within defendant's territory to be delivered at the point where complainant desires to connect its proposed transmission line with the defendant's, any action taken by defendant with the intent and purpose of assisting the village of Arco in securing electric energy to be used within the territory covered by complainant's certificate



is an unlawful invasion of said territory. On the other hand, it may be argued that since the law allows municipalities to own and operate electric plants and systems and specifically exempts them from the jurisdiction of the commission, the commission, by refusing to permit defendant to furnish electric energy to the village of Arco on the ground that such energy is to be used within the complainant's territory, is doing indirectly what the law says it may not do directly—that is, exercising jurisdiction over the territory within the exclusive control of the municipality. On the broad grounds that the best interests of the public generally in the regard of territories allotted to complainant and defendant by the Commission, will best be served by requiring that all the demand for electric energy in such territory be supplied by the utility authorized to operate in that field or territory, it would appear that the Commission might refuse to permit any current to be carried without the limits of the territory which the Commission, in the exercise of its judgment, has assigned to a particular utility. We cannot, however, escape the conclusion that the legislature, in exempting municipalities from the jurisdiction of the Commission intended to remove the territory within the municipality from control of the commission as completely and effectively as if it had taken such territory bodily and set it down without the confines of the other.”

The Commission, therefore, held:

“That the defendant should not be restrained and enjoined from entering into a contract to furnish or sell and deliver to the village of Arco electric energy at any point within territory covered by the certificate of convenience and necessity issued to said defendant by the Commission,

to be carried over a transmission line owned by said village for the exclusive use of said village within its corporate limits.”

We have quoted rather extensively from the case involving the Village of Arco, because it so perfectly parallels the situation here. The Idaho Public Service Commission confirmed the right of the Village of Arco to by-pass the closest utility and to go clear through its territory to acquire power from the Ashton & St. Anthony Power Company. For the same reasons and considerations, the city of Nephi has the right to by-pass the Telluride Power Company and purchase the power it needs from the Utah Power & Light Company.

Another case equally in point is *Village District of Belmont v. LaConia Gas and Electric Co.* (New Hampshire) P.U.R. 1925 C, page 349. There a city had been buying power from the Tilton Electric Light Company. The city board decided, when its contract expired, to buy power from LaConia Gas & Electric Co. The latter company refused to sell to the city, because Tilton had been serving the town, and Tilton had adequate facilities to continue so to do. Tilton intervened and proved that the loss of revenue would be serious, and that it was willing and anxious to continue to serve the town. Again we have a direct parallel, in that there was an existing contract with the first utility, it was rendering adequate service and the loss of revenues would be serious. The second utility (like Utah Power) did not want to serve the town. Still, the Commission required the second utility to render service to the town.

See also *Town of Kearny v. Passaic Consolidated Water Company*, 1925 B P.U.R., page 437. There a town had by contract purchased water from the New Jersey Suburban Water Company. Its contract expired. The town desired to discontinue purchasing from that company and to commence purchasing from Passaic Consolidated Water Company. Both the first and the second companies were regulated utilities. The facts showed that the New Jersey Suburban Water Company was buying water from Passaic and reselling it at an increased price to the town. By making the purchase and resale, New Jersey Suburban Water Company was able to render adequate service. It had a big investment in facilities which were constructed to permit delivery of the water to the town. The loss of the town as a customer would greatly lessen the value of the facilities. Nevertheless, the Commission held that the town was not required to continue to buy from New Jersey Suburban Water Company, which desired to continue to serve the town. The Commission, therefore, ordered Passaic to permit the connection.

All of these cases are in point with the decision of the P.S.C. here. It is not possible to spell out any substantial difference in any one of them. They are in harmony with the Utah Supreme Court ruling which accords to Nephi the right to operate its own electrical distribution system, free from the control of the Public Service Commission. If the Commission is permitted to shut off every other available source of electrical energy, it can compel by indirection the purchase of power from Tellu-

ride. It could thus in violation of the constitution award Nephi to Telluride. Telluride asks the Court to do this, because Telluride allegedly needs the revenues.

(b) THE NEED OF TELLURIDE FOR ADDITIONAL REVENUES  
IS IMMATERIAL TO THE ISSUES INVOLVED IN THIS CASE.

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